
 71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                 (DECEMBER 17) (Week 51 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held December 17, 
2024, at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of 
taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come 
before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.  
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                          
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 7 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the December 10, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  Board of Supervisors – Matthew Ung 

                        Authorize the Chairman to sign letter of support for Camp High Hopes and their application to  

                        Iowa Economic Development Authority’s Community Attraction and Tourism Grant 

  

                    5.  Building Services – Kenny Schmitz 

                         Approval of items to be auctioned per Personal Property Disposition Policy 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                    6.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

                         Approval of resolution thanking Ashley Christensen for her years of service on the Board of   

                         Adjustment 

 

                    7.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                         a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                         b.  Approval of retiree request to remain on the PPO (single) and County Dental Insurance with   

                              spouse 

                         c.  Approval for the Chairman to sign the 2025 Innovative Benefit Consultants plan renewal 

                         d.  Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement with Creative Planning 

 

 End Consent Agenda 

 

                    8.  Board of Supervisors – Mark Nelson 

                         Approval to move the 12/31/24 meeting time from 4:30 p.m. to 9:30 a.m. 

 

  4:35 p.m.  9.  Board Administration – Heather VanSickle 

(Set time)         Public hearing and sale of property Parcel #894704127021 (aka 5201 Hamilton Blvd)      Action 

 

                 10.  Board of Supervisors – Keith Radig 

                        Approval of letter of support for the SRTS RAISE grant application                                    Action 

 

                 11.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        a.  Award the bid for Briese Farm rental for 2025, 2026, and 2027 to the high bidder         Action 

                             for cash rent of 41 acres 

                        b.  Approval of the final voucher for project ER-C097(145)—58-97 with L.A. Carlson         Action 

                             Contracting 

                        c.  Approval of plans for project BRS-C097(151)—60-97                                                     Action 

 

                 12.  Conservation – Dan Heissel 

                        Discussion and action on Browns Lake restroom/shower boiler replacement -                   Action 

                        Emergency repair   

 

                 13.  Deputy County Auditor – Michelle Skaff 

                        Discuss and approve reallocation of ARPA funds                                                               Action 

 

                 14.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                   Information    

               

                 15.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                           Information 

 

                 16.  Board Concerns                                                                                                            Information     

 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                               
WED., DEC 18    12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., DEC 19       4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., DEC 20      12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 

FRI., JAN 3          9:00 a.m.      Hungry Canyons Alliance - TBD  
 
MON., JAN 6       6:00 p.m.      Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom    
 
WED., JAN 8       6:30 p.m.      911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill            
 
                             8:05 a.m.      Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

                             6:30 p.m.      911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill                         

THU., JAN 9      12:00 p.m.      SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive. 

                            4:00 p.m.      Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

WED., JAN 15  12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., JAN. 16    4:30 p.m.      Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., JAN. 17   12:00 p.m.       Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    

  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



DECEMBER 10, 2024, FIFTIETH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, December 10, 2024, at 4:00 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Radig, 
Nelson, Taylor, and Bittinger II. Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, 
Human Resources Director, and Michelle Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a).  Carried 4-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Taylor entered the meeting at 4:06pm. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(a).  Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Radig to award relief to J.H. Carried 5-0. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the agenda for December 10, 2024. Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the December 3, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed. 
 
3. To approve the claims totaling $767,105.77.  Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve an application for 12-month Class C Retail Alcohol License, with Outdoor Service Sales privileges, for 

Lofted View Events, effective 12/5/24 through 12/4/25.  Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve the property tax refund request for Craig & Louis Deitloff, parcel #894710454040, in the amount of 

$296.50.  Copy filed. 
 
6a. To receive for signatures a Resolution Thanking and Commending Faye Hill for her years of service with Woodbury 

County. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,809 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 
FAYE HILL 

FOR HER SERVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, Faye Hill has capably served Woodbury County as an employee of the Secondary Roads Department for 
27 years from September 29, 1997 to December 31, 2024. 
 
WHEREAS, the service given by Faye Hill as a Woodbury County employee, has been characterized by her dedication 
to the best interests of the citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 
undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Faye Hill for her years of service to Woodbury County; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below that the future hold only the best for this very 
deserving person, Faye Hill 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED this 10th day of December 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 



December 10, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

 

 

 

6b. To receive for signatures a Resolution Thanking and Commending Mark Nahra for his years of service with 
Woodbury County. 

 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

RESOLUTION #13,810 
A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

MARK NAHRA 
FOR HIS SERVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Mark Nahra has capably served Woodbury County as an employee of the Secondary Roads Department 
for 15 years from January 1, 2009 to February 14, 2025. 
 
WHEREAS, the service given by Mark Nahra as a Woodbury County employee, has been characterized by his 
dedication to the best interests of the citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 
undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Mark Nahra for his years of service to Woodbury County; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below that the future hold only the best for this very 
deserving person, Mark Nahra. 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED this 10th day of December 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6c. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution to appoint Jean Logan as Representative of the 

Northwest Iowa Regional Housing Authority. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,811 
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE 

OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF  
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, held a duly authorized regular 
meeting on the 10th day of December, 2024 and 
WHEREAS, at said meeting at said meeting it was duly noted that a noted that a resolution "Declaring the 
Need for a Housing Authority in Woodbury County, Iowa" had been previously passed and adopted; 
 
AND WHEREAS, a resolution has been passed and adopted entitled "Resolution Approving and Authorizing 
the Execution of a Certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the purpose of Creating a Multi-County 
Housing Authority". 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, Pursuant to the provision of Chapter 28E, Code of Iowa, and by vi1iue of our office as 
Board of Supervisors, we hereby appoint the one (1) person hereinafter named to serve as Representative 
of the Northwest Iowa Regional Housing Authority, representing Woodbury County, Iowa, and to serve for 
the number of years appearing after the person's name, respectively, from the 10th day or December, 
2024 to the 10th day of December, 2027. 
 
Name of Representative: Jean Logan Number of years: 3 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name, as Chairperson of the 
Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, and caused the official corporate seal of said Woodbury 
County, Iowa to be attached hereto this 10th day of December, 2024. 



December 10, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 3 
 

 

 

 

 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
6d. To approve the appointment of Treyla Lee to the Judicial Magistrate Nomination Commission.  Copy filed. 
 
6e. To approve the lifting tax suspension for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or income does not 

qualify for continues tax suspension.  Copy filed. 
  
7a. To approve the reclassification of Hayden Harmon, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 09-16-2024, 

$26.86/hour, 5%=$1.29/hr.  Per Sheriff Accounting for Previous Years of Service.  Move from 2nd to 1st Class.; the 
reclassification of Tristen Vanderschaaf, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 03-18-2024, $26.86/hour, 
5%=$1.29/hr.  Per Sheriff Accounting for Previous Years of Service.  Move from 2nd to 1st Class.; the reclassification 
of James Krause, Sign Technician, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 12-09-2024, $29.28/hour, 1%=$0.30/hr.  Per 
CWA:  From Step 3 to Step 4.  Anniversary Date:  12/16/2024.;  the reclassification of Donovan Masters, Deputy, 
County Sheriff Dept., effective 12-09-2024, $39.64/hour, 10%=$3.58/hr.  Per CWA:  From Senior to Master.   
Anniversary Date:  12/18/2024.; the reclassification of Aaron Tompkins, Correction Officer, County Sheriff Dept., 
effective 12-09-2024, $26.86/hour, 5%=$1.29/hr.  Per CWA: From 2nd Class to First Class.  Anniversary Date:  
12/16/2024.; the other of Lisa Anderson, Secretary PT, Human Resources Dept., effective 12-09-2024, 
$30.72/hour, 7%=$2.00/hr.  Transfer from PT Temp to PT.  In-house Job Vacancy Posted 11/27/2024.; the 
appointment of Jared Magana, Youth Worker, Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 12-12-2024, $22.05/hour.  Job 
Vacancy Posted on 10/23/2024.  Entry Level Salary $22.05/hour.; the appointment of Courtney Sherrill, Clerk II, 
County Attorney Dept., effective 12-17-2024, $20.14/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted on 2/28/2024.  Entry Level Salary:  
$20.14/hour.; the separation of Willie Garrett, %Deputy Captain, County Sheriff Dept., effective 01-29-2025.  
Retired.; and the separation of Mark Nahra, County Engineer, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 02-14-2025.  
Retired.  Copy filed. 

 
7b. To approve the request of Willie Garrett to remain on County Health and County Dental Insurance family plans.  

Copy filed. 
 
7c. To approve the request of Pat Gill to remain on the County Dental Insurance.  Copy filed. 
 
7d. To approve the renewal of 2025 casualty insurance.  Copy filed. 
 
7e.  To approve the part time HR secretary and deauthorize the temporary secretary position.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
8. Public comments were heard for creation of Salix Drainage District.  
 
 Kevin Nelson, Salix Mayor, and  Greg Jochum, 1629 270th, Salix, commented in support of the report. 
  

Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve the engineer’s report for creation of Salix Drainage District.  Carried 
5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
9a. Motion by Ung second by Radig to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s recommendation from 

their 11/25/24 meeting to approve the final plat of Oakridge Addition, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, 
Iowa.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
9b. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution accepting Oakridge 

Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa.  Carried 5-0. 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
RESOLUTION #13,812 



December 10, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 4 
 

 

 

 

ACCEPTING AND APPROVING OAKRIDGE ADDITION 
A MINOR SUBDIVISION 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors have reviewed and 
approved the Final Plat of Oakridge Addition to Woodbury County, lowa, and whereas approval of the Final Plat of 
Oakridge Addition to Woodbury County, lowa has been recommended to the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Now, therefore be, and it is, resolved by the Woodbury 
County Board of Supervisors, that said Final Plat of Oakridge Addition to Woodbury County, lowa, as hereto 
attached and forming part of this Resolution be, and the same hereby is, accepted and approved. 
 
Dated 12-10, 2024 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
9c. Motion by Radig second by Ung to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s recommendation from 

their 11/25/24 meeting to approve the final plat of JW Collins Homestead, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury 
Couty, Iowa.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
9d. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution accepting JW Collins 

Homestead, a minor subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa.  Carried 5-0. 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
RESOLUTION #13,813 

ACCEPTING AND APPROVING JW COLLINS HOMESTEAD 
A MINOR SUBDIVISION 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

WHEREAS, THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS DID ON THE 25th DAY OF November, 2024, 
FILE WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION A CERTAIN PLAT DESIGNATED AS "JW Collins 
Homestead", WOODBURY COUNTY,  IOWA; AND 
WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF THE STATE OF 
IOWA AND ORDINANCES OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, WITH REFERENCE TO THE FILING OF SAME; AND 
WHEREAS, THE ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE 
AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT; AND 
WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE ACCEPTANCE AND 
APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT. 
NOW THEREFORE, BE, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, THAT THE PLAT OF ""JW Collins Homestead", WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
BE, AND THE SAME IS HEREBY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED, AND THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY OF THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, ARE HEREBY DIRECTED TO 
FURNISH TO THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF December, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
10.          Reports on committee meetings were heard. 

 
11.          Doyle Turner, Moville, expressed concerns regarding the law enforcement authority. 
 
 Greg Jochum, Salix, and Kevin Nelson, Salix, commended exiting board members and county engineer for their 

service.  
 



December 10, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 5 
 

 

 

 

12. Board Concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until December 17, 2024. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 
 
 
 





Woodbury County Personal Property Disposition Form

 DATE:

A slicer is in 

cells B9 

Fill in the fields below (* REQUIRED):

For Office Use Only:

Item Description*

PHONE:

NAME:

DEPARTMENT:

Person icon is 

in this cell

Envelope is in 

this cell

Phone icon is 

in this cell

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

Current Location*

Estimated Value*

Auction Reserve

County Asset Number

Serial/VIN Number

Year

Make/Model

GovDeals ID #

Sale Price

Date

Notes



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/12/24 12/17/24

Daniel J. Priestley

✔ ✔

✔

✔

Approval of resolution thanking Ashley Christensen for her years of service on the Board of
Adjustment.

This item requests the Board of Supervisors to consider approving a resolution in recognition of a member of
the Board of Adjustment, Ashley Christensen, whose term expires on 12/31/24.

Ashley Christensen served on the Board of Adjustment since 2020. Ashely Christensen has competently
served throughout her tenure, and as such is being recognized accordingly.

Approve the resolution thanking Ashley Christensen for her service on the Board of Adjustment.

Approval of resolution thanking Ashley Christensen for her years of service on the Board of Adjustment.



WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 
 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING  

 
ASHLEY CHRISTENSEN  

 
FOR HER SERVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY  

 
WHEREAS, Ashley Christensen has capably served Woodbury County as a member of the Board of 
Adjustment for five years from 2020 to 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the service given by Ashley Christensen has been characterized as exemplary by her 
dedication to the best interests of the citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ashley Christensen has contributed to the betterment of the county by hearing and deciding 
on matters related to the county zoning, including variances and conditional uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, notable actions made by the Board of Adjustment during Ashley Christensen's tenure include 
the review and recommendation of numerous developments, public and private infrastructure 
improvements, and various county ordinances to improve the quality of life for residents and businesses 
throughout Woodbury County; and   
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA that the undersigned members of the Board hereby thanks and commends Ashley 
Christensen for her years of service to Woodbury County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below that the future hold only the 
best for this very deserving person, Ashley Christensen. 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED this 17th day of December 2024. 
 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 

Matthew Ung, Chairman  Daniel Bittinger II, Vice-Chairman 
 

 
  

 
 

Mark Nelson, Member  Keith Radig, Member 
 
 
 

 Jeremy Taylor, Member  
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 

Michelle K. Skaff, Deputy  
Woodbury County Auditor 

 



     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _December 17th, 2024__                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

Torres-

Gomez, 

Adrian 

 

 

 

Juvenile Detention 

 

 

12-19-2024 

 

PT Youth 

Worker - Temp 

 

 

$22.05/hour 

 
 

 

 

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

11/13/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary: 

$22.05/hour. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 



 

      
            November 20, 2024 
 

Ms. Melissa Thomas 
Woodbury County Human Resources Director 
620 Douglas Street 
Sioux City, IA 51101 
 
Dear Melissa, 
 
I have sent notice of my intention to retire as Woodbury County Engineer effective February 14, 
2025, to the Board of Supervisors.  Beginning December 31, 2024, it is my intention that I will begin 
using up my vacation leave, which should run out near the February 14th date.   I would request that 
any extra vacation leave be cashed out after that date. 
 
I will be eligible for Medicare as of March 1, 2025, but request that my wife be allowed to continue 
county health insurance at our expense as we discussed today.   I would also like to retain dental 
coverage through the county for both of us.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

Mark J. Nahra 

 
Mark J. Nahra, P.E. 
Woodbury County Engineer 
 
 
 

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/12/2024 12/17/2024

Melissa  Thomas 

✔

✔

✔

Approval for the Chairman to sign the 2025 Innovative Benefit Consultants plan renewal. 

This renewal is for third party administrative services of our flexible medical benefits, dependent care benefits 
and HRA.

This year, once again, IBC will perform our non-discrimination test with the IRS. The annual carryover amount 
has increased to $660 and the maximum flex medical contribution is $3300.  
 

IBC charges a $200 annual fee along with administration fees of $4.50 per month per member. 

Pass the motion.

 Accept the 2025 IBC renewal for signature. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HRA, Flex and Dependent Care Employer Form 

1 
 

SECTION 1: EMPLOYER INFORMATION 
Employer Name Woodbury County Primary Contact 

Name 
Melissa Thomas 

Employer Address 620 Douglas Street 
Sioux City IA  51101 

Title Human Resource Director 
Contact Phone 712-279-6480 
Contact Email melissathomas@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

Federal Tax ID 42-6005221 Corporate Phone 
Number 

712-279-6480 

Business Entity Type       C Corporation  S Corporation  Sole Proprietor  LLC  Partnership  Non-Profit 
Organization   Government Entity or Church 

SECTION 2: FLEX PLAN DESIGN 

Plan Type  Renewal    New  

Plan Year 01/01/2025 - 12/31/2025 

Plan Options Dependent Care Account                         Yes    No 
Flexible Spending Account                        Yes    No 
HRA Employer Funded Account                Yes    No 

Payment Features  Benny Debit Card (Funding on a weekly basis) 
 Pay Provider  
 Pay Member Claims reimbursement submitted in person, via fax, mail or online  

Minimum check Amount $20.00 
Claims Reimbursed:  Daily    Weekly 
Frequency of Electronic Fund Transfers:  Daily    Weekly 

Runout Period 
Last date to submit claims for 
services received in the plan year 

 

Do you offer a 90-day runout period for both Flex and Dependent Care? 
 Yes  No  Other:       

Do mid-year terms have the same runout period as above? 
 Yes  No If no, provide runout timing:         

Divisions 
For reporting purposes 

 Yes  No       

Carryover Option 
Applies to Flex only 

    Yes    
     No 

$660   Maximum Carryover Amount 



   

2 
 

Grace Period Grace Period offered and applied to both HC and DC FSA Plans?  
 Yes  No  Only Flex Spending   Only Dependent Care 

Grace Period, if applicable, 2.5 months? NA  
 Yes  Other:        

Flex Spending Account Minimum: $0 Max: $3,300 
Dependent Care Account Minimum: $0 Max: $5,000  

 

 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 3: HRA PLAN DESIGN 
Health Reimbursement 
Arrangement 
An HRA may not provide 
tax-free benefits to self-
employed individuals (e.g. 
sole proprietors, partners, 
and more-than-2% 
Subchapter S corporation 
shareholders and their 
spouse, child, parent, or 
grandparent). Individuals not 
allowed participation in a 
Cafeteria Plan include self-
employed individuals (but 
they can sponsor a plan); 
partners in a partnership 
(but the partnership can 
sponsor a plan); and a 
more-than-2%-shareholder 
in a Subchapter S 
corporation. 
 

  Option 1: HRA pays 100% of health insurance premium to member 
  Option 2: Upfront Member HRA Deductible ________ to plan maximum _____________ 
  Option 3: Upfront Member HRA Deductible ____HRA Pays ___% to plan maximum ______ 

Aggregate Deductible:  All family members or any one member could satisfy the deductible or 
entire funding 
Embedded Deductible:  Yes    No   ___2x Individual amount   ____3x Individual amount 
(Embedded: a specific number of family members must meet the HRA individual deductible along with the 
family meeting an HRA deductible) 
Individual Cap:   Yes   Amount $ ________     No 
(Limits funding on each individual within a family) 
HRA Expense List:   Deductible   Coinsurance   Prescriptions   Copay   X retiree premium 
In-network Claims only?  Yes   No 
Pro-Ration of HRA- I would like new enrollees to receive a pro-rated HRA amount for the months 
that they are enrolled in the plan year.  Yes    No 
Pro-Ration Method:  Monthly (1/12)   Quarterly (1/4) 
Divisions by Location:   Yes     No 

SECTION 4: ENROLLMENT INFORMATION 
Open Enrollment Dates November 
Collecting Enrollment 
Information 

How will enrollment information be collected by the employer from the employee (please describe): 
Online enrollments – may have some paper enrollments 

Providing Enrollment 
Information to IBC 

How will enrollment information be provided to IBC (select one): 
  IBC Online Portal 
  Excel file to be uploaded to IBC 
 Manual enrollments  

If contact responsible for this is different than the Primary Contact, please provide information below:   
Contact Name:  Melissa Thomas  Title: Human Resource Director     
Contact Phone:        Contact Email:  melissathomas@woodburycountyiowa.gov 



   

3 
 

SECTION 5: ELIGIBILITY 
New Hire 
Waiting Period 

Healthcare FSA:  first of the month following 30-days  
Dependent Care FSA: first of the month following 30-days 
HRA: 20 years or 500 hours 
Waiting period applies to new hires during OE?    Yes     No    

Who is eligible  Full Time Only  Per union contract 
# of Hours Required  
for Eligible Status Follows medical plan eligibility rules    HRA: 20 years of service and 500 hours. 

Effective Date  1st of the month after meeting eligibility requirements    
Termination When does coverage end upon termination?     Termination Date      End of month following 

termination  

 
SECTION 7: PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 
Payroll Frequency   
deductions taken 

FLEX:   Monthly (12)   Bi-Weekly (24)     Bi-Weekly (26)   Weekly (52)  Semi-
Monthly 
HRA:  Beginning of Plan Year       Other: Per eligibility guidelines for retirees 

First payroll date in plan 
year 01/10/2025 

 
SECTION 8: OTHER CONTACTS 
Contact:  Melissa Thomas Human Resource Director 

(712) 234-2901 Fax #:       melissathomas@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

SECTION 9: PLAN DOCUMENT  
The Plan is (check one)   ERISA Plan       Non-ERISA Plan 
Federal Employer ID # 42-6005221 
State of Controlling Law IA 
3-digit Plan Number  
i.e., 501, 502, etc.  501 

 
SECTION 10: BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION 
Bank Name  NA  -  group will push funds into the IBC Admin account weekly 
Lost Check  
Fee paid by consumer 

Stop Payment Option:  Yes  No       
If yes, waiting period 30 days   Bank Fee: $25.00 

 

SETION 6: QUALIFIED CHANGES 
Election Changes Election changes must be submitted within 30 days after the date of the event.   
Coverage Begins If qualified changes allowed, coverage following a qualified life change will begin: (select one) 

  On any day of the month following request for new enrollment or change in enrollment. 
  On the first of the month following request for new enrollment or change in enrollment (with the 
exception of changes resulting from birth, adoption, or placement for adoption, which will be 
made as of the date of the qualified event in accordance with HIPAA). 

mailto:melissathomas@woodburycountyiowa.gov


   

4 
 

SECTION 11: INNOVATIVE BUSINESS CONSULTANTS ADMINISTRATION FEES 
Annual Fee $200 

PMPM Plan Fees $4.50                                                       Per plan or Aggregate? Plan 

Billing Frequency  Quarterly      Annually 
 
 
 
I certify that I am legally authorized to sign this Health Reimbursement Arrangement, Flexible Spending and Dependent Care Employer 
Application on behalf of the employer named herein.  
 
 
Signature                                                                         Title:                                                 Date:             /            /            

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/11/2024 12/17/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director 

✔

✔

✔

Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement with Creative Planning 

We have been informed that our current fiduciary service provider, Morningstar, will be discontinued. 

If we choose not to adopt Creative Planning as our fiduciary, we will no longer have oversight of a 
non-discretionary fiduciary service provider and we would be responsible for selecting and monitoring the 
investment options for our plan. Information regarding Creative planning and the agreement are in the backup 
materials. 

$0, fees remain the same 

Pass the motion

Motion to approve the Investment Advisory Agreement with Creative Planning 



































































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/12/2024 12/17/2024

Supervisor Nelson

✔

Approval to move the 12/31/2024 Meeting time from 4:30 PM to 9:30 AM

The last board meeting of the year falls on 12/31/2024 which is New Year's Eve. The board should consider 
moving the meeting time sooner to allow staff to not work after hours.

None

Reccommend we move the meeting to 930 AM and have the swearing in ceremony for new elected officials at
9AM just prior. Judge Tott is available

Pass Motion 





























WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

12/12/24 12/17/24

Dan Heissel

The boiler runs the in floor heat for the whole building and is zoned. I have been fixing and patching this system for the past three 
years to get by while I have applied for CIP funding to replace the boiler the past two years. It was brought to my attention that this 
request never made it past step one with the process that is put in place to review and move projects on for funding. The cost of 
glycol we were losing last summer caused the company to just fill the system with water and we started testing by zones and finally 
this past week were able to determine the boiler has the leak.  Internal heat exchangers are leaking and the boiler needs to be 
replaced before it fails and we have frozen and broken lines throughout the whole building.      

This boiler is out of warranty and lived past its expectancy and as I stated above I have been patching and fixing what I could for 
the past three years as I have been  requesting CIP funding to replace the boiler.  Now I have no choice but to replace or have the 
whole system freeze and lose our in floor heating system. 

Browns Lake Restroom/Shower Boiler Replacement - Emergency Repair

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

✔

The cost to replace the boiler has been qouted at $12,849 dollars plus any extra glycol that will be needed to be added to get it to 
the right percentage which I believe is 32% so it doesn't freeze. I do not have funds budgeted or in my budget to repair this.

After talking with the Budget Director Michelle Skaff she recommended since this is an emergency repair 
that needs to be done as soon as possible that I request to be on the agenda and ask for this to be funded 
with Gaming funds as she knows there are funds available at this time that could cover this cost.

To approve funds in the amount of $12,849 from the Gaming Fund to cover the cost of replacing the boiler 
at the Browns Lake Shower/Restroom/Tornado shelter.   



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

12-11-2024 12-17-24

Deputy Auditor Skaff

According to American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") rules, all funds must be obligated by Dec. 31, 2024, and must be spent in 
obligated projects by Dec. 31, 2026. It is recommended to reallocated ARPA admin allocations to a current need in the Sheriff's 
Office.  

Currently, there are funds remaining in the amount of $19,300.00 in ARPA10 administration.  The funds have been allocated for the 
Baker Group and UHY for administering ARPA.    History shows that Calendar Year 2024 has had $3,600.00 in expenses with only 
$400.00 expensed in the last quarter.   
 
The Sheriff is in need of 5 tasers at a cost of $18,466.80. It is recommended to reallocate this amount from ARPA10 to ensure that 
Woodbury County is expending the funds for current county needs.  
 
Additionally, ARPA15 is complete and has $19.36 remaining due to a payroll correction. These funds can be reallocated. ARPA 9 
and ARPA 16 show a very small amount that was over expended. To reconcile those with the grant reporting, .04 should be 
reallocated to ARPA 09 and .50 should be reallocated to ARPA 16. 
 
Summary: 
Move $19.36  from ARPA15 - Attorney Wages (due to a past payroll correction)  
Move $18,447.98 from ARPA10- ARPA Admin Fees. remaining allocation in ARPA10 will be $852.02  
Move .04 to ARPA 09- Auditor and Treas Appointed deputies -  to balance small over expense on this line  
Move .50 to ARPA16- $1500 Retention payment to Co Atty -  to balance small over expense on this line 
Create ARPA 27 - $18,466.80 allocated for 5 tasers for the Sheriff's Office. 

Discuss and approve reallocation of ARPA appropriations

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

n/a

Approve to reallocate ARPA funds as indicated in the background. 

Motion by second by to reallocate $18.447.98 from ARPA10 and $19.36 from ARPA15 to create ARPA27 to 
purchase 5 tasers in the amount of $18,466.80 and to balance small variance on ARPA 09 ($.04) and ARPA 
16 ($.50). 


	Insert from: "12-17-24_Resolution_Thanking_Ashley_Christensen (003).pdf"
	amending portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56: An amendment to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements in the ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in unincorporated Woodbury County.


	Name: Ryan Chytka
	Department: Building Services
	Estimated Value: unknown
	GoveDeals ID: 
	Description: LEC furniture / assets
	Authorized Representative: [Building Services Director]
	Phone: 712-279-6539
	Auction Reserve: 
	Location: LEC, 407 7th Street, Sioux City IA
	County Asset #: 
	Serial/VIN: 
	Year: 
	Make/Model: 
	Notes: Disposition of remaining furniture/assets from the closed LEC.
	Sale Price: 
	Sale Date: 
	Date: 12/17/24


